## MINUTES PLANNING COMMITTEE

### Wednesday 18 February 2015

Councillor Barbara Miller (Chair)

- In Attendance: Councillor Pauline Allan Councillor Cheryl Hewlett Councillor Roy Allan Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth **Councillor Mike Hope** Councillor Peter Barnes Councillor Chris Barnfather **Councillor Meredith Lawrence** Councillor Denis Beeston MBE Councillor Marie Paling **Councillor Colin Powell** Councillor John Boot Councillor Bob Collis Councillor Suzanne Prew-Smith Councillor Andrew Ellwood
- Absent: Councillor John Truscott, Councillor Alan Bexon, Councillor Ged Clarke and Councillor Lynda Pearson

Officers in Attendance: P Baguley, J Cole, L Parnell and F Whyley

### 271 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bexon, Clarke and Pearson.

Councillor Payne attended the meeting as substitute for Councillor Truscott, who had sent his apologies.

# 272 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 JANUARY 2015.

### **RESOLVED**:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be approved as a correct record.

### 273 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

None.

# 274 APPLICATION NO. 2014/0238- LAND WEST OF WESTHOUSE FARM, MOOR ROAD, BESTWOOD.

Land West Of Westhouse Farm Moor Road Bestwood Nottinghamshire

Councillor Barnfather proposed a motion to defer determination of application number 2014/0238, on the grounds of sustainability and education provision, to allow time for an agreement to be made between the developer, Gedling Borough Council and Nottinghamshire County Council that would ensure adequate educational provision.

The motion was duly seconded and following a vote, the motion was lost.

Ms. Karen Peacock, a local resident, spoke against the proposals.

The Service Manager, Planning and Economic Development, informed Members of two additional letters that had been received in relation to the application since the publication of the agenda.

RESOLVED to GRANT OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement with the Borough Council as local planning authority and with the County Council as local highway and education authority for the provision of, or financial contributions towards Affordable Housing, Open Space, Healthcare Facilities, Integrated Transport and Educational Facilities; and subject to the following conditions:

### Conditions

- 1. Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Borough Council not later than three years from the date of this permission.
- 2. The vehicular access hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the Proposed Site Access drawing (13152-010), deposited on 28th February 2014.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a written assessment of the nature and extent of any potential or actual contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council. This assessment shall include a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination and an assessment of the potential risks to human health, property, land. controlled ecological adjoining waters, systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments. The assessment shall be undertaken by a competent person and shall assess any contamination of the site whether or not it originates on site.
- 4. In the event that remediation is required to render the development suitable for use, a written remediation scheme and timetable of works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council. The scheme shall then be implemented in accordance with the approved details. Prior to the development being first brought into use, a Verification Report

(that satisfactorily demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action) must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council.

- 5. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a Dust Management Plan. The plan shall be produced in accordance with 'The Control of Dust and Emissions from Construction and Demolition' (Best Practice Guidance). The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
- 6. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of the new road, including longitudinal and cross sectional gradients, visibility splays, Traffic Regulation Orders, street lighting, drainage and outfall proposals, construction specification, provision of and diversion of utilities services, and any proposed structural works. All details submitted to the Borough Council for approval shall comply with the County Council's Highway Design and Parking Guides which are current at the time the details are submitted. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 7. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of: (1) a suitable access arrangement, as shown for indicative purposes on drawing number 13152-010; (2) the provision of pedestrian links and a suitable crossing point to the nearby bus stops; (3) the provision of potential upgrades to the public footpath link to the NET tram stop at Butlers Hill, as well as cycle links to the Leen Valley Country Park; and (4) the provision of a new 'Gateway' treatment and extended traffic calming zone for Moor Road. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 8. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of wheel washing facilities to be used by vehicles entering and leaving site during the construction period. The approved wheel washing facilities shall be maintained in working order at all times during the construction period and shall be used by every vehicle carrying mud, dirt or other debris on its wheels before leaving the site so that no mud, dirt or other debris is discharged or carried on to a public road.

- 9. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council drainage plans for the proposed means of disposal of foul sewage. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is first brought into use, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 10. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council, details of a surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council. The scheme to be submitted shall demonstrate: (1) The utilisation of holding sustainable drainage techniques which incorporate at least two differing forms of SuDS treatment in accordance with Table 3.3 of CIRIA C697 'The SuDS Manual' prior to discharging from the site; (2) The limitation of surface water run-off to the equivalent Greenfield runoff rate; (3) The ability to accommodate surface water run-off on-site up to the critical 1 in 100 year event plus an appropriate allowance for climate change, based upon the submission of drainage calculations; and (4) Responsibility for the future maintenance of drainage features.
- 11. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of an archaeological scheme of treatment. The scheme shall include post-determination evaluation beginning with a scheme of geophysical survey, possibly with a subsequent scheme of trial trenching and/or archaeological monitoring, as deemed necessary. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 12. Before development is commenced, including vegetation clearance or ground works, the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained shall be protected in accordance with the details specified in the Arboricultural Survey, February 2014, by Middlemarch Environmental Ltd. The means of protection shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details for the duration of the construction period, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 13. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a 'bat friendly' lighting scheme to ensure that artificial lighting (including

any construction site lighting and compound lighting), avoids illuminating boundary features such as hedgerows and other areas of retained or created habitat (including the balancing pond). The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

- 14. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a scheme for the incorporation of integrated bird and bat boxes within the fabric of a proportion of the houses; bird boxes should target species such as house sparrow, swallow and swift. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is first brought into use and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 15. Before development is commenced, including vegetation clearance or ground works, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council a reptile method statement to ensure the field margins are cleared sensitively. The method statement shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is first commenced, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 16. No vegetation clearance or ground works shall be undertaken until the site has been walked by an ecologist to ensure that badgers have not moved onto the site. If any badgers are found to be present, details of any mitigation measures that may be deemed necessary shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council before vegetation clearance or ground works commence. The mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before development commences.
- 17. No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place on site during the bird nesting season (1st March to 31st August inclusive in any given year), unless pre-commencement checks for nesting birds have been undertaken by an appropriately qualified ecologist and the outcome reported to the Borough Council. If any nesting birds are found to be present, details of any proposed mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council before the development commences. The mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before development commences, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 18. During the construction phase, if any trenches are left open overnight, they should be left with a sloping end or ramp to allow badgers or other mammals that may fall into the excavation to

escape, and any pipes over 150 mm in diameter should be capped off at night to prevent mammals from entering them.

- 19. The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to scale shall include details of existing and proposed site levels in relation to adjacent properties. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 20. The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to appearance shall include details of the materials to be used in the external elevations and roofs of the proposed buildings. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 21. The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to landscaping shall include: (a) details of the size, species, positions and density of all trees and shrubs to be planted, which shall consist of native species, ideally of local provenance, where possible; (b) details of the boundary treatments, including those to individual plot boundaries; (c) the proposed means of surfacing access roads, car parking areas, roadways and the frontages of properties such as driveways and footpaths to front doors and (d) a programme of implementation. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 22. If within a period of five years beginning with the date of the planting of any tree or shrub, approved as reserved matters in relation to landscaping, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub that is planted in replacement of it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes in the opinion of the Borough Council seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 23. Any garage doors shall be set back from the highway boundary a minimum distance of 5 metres for sliding or roller shutter doors, 5.5 metres for up and over doors or 6 metres for doors opening outwards. The garage doors shall be retained to this specification for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

- 1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
- 2. For the avoidance of doubt.
- 3. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 4. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 5. To protect the residential amenity of the area in accordance with the aims of Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 6. To ensure that the roads of the proposed development are designed to an adoptable standard in order to accord with Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 7. To ensure an adequate form of development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 8. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 9. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 10. To prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality; to improve habitat and amenity; to ensure the future maintenance of the sustainable drainage structures; and to protect the water environment from pollution, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies 1 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy Submission Documents.
- 11. To ensure the appropriate investigation and recording of archaeological features, in accordance with Section 12 of the

National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 11 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).

- 12. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity and the landscape in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 13. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).
- 14. To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 15. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).
- 16. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).
- 17. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 18. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 19. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 20. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 21. To ensure that the landscaping of the proposed development accords with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

- 22. To ensure a satisfactory development, in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 23. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

### **Reasons for Decision**

The development has been considered in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014), where appropriate. In the opinion of the Borough Council, the proposed development largely accords with the relevant policies of these frameworks and plans. Where the development conflicts with the Development Plan, it is the opinion of the Borough Council that other material considerations indicate that permission should be granted. The benefits of granting the proposal outweigh any adverse impact of departing from the Development Plan.

## Notes to Applicant

It is an offence under S148 and S151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public highway and as such you should undertake every effort to prevent it occurring.

The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if any highway forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highways Authority. The new roads and any highway drainage will be required to comply with the Nottinghamshire County Council's current highway design guidance and specification for roadworks.

The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under section 219 of the Act payment will be required from the owner of the land fronting a private street on which a new building is to be erected. The developer should contact the Highway Authority with regard to compliance with the Code, or alternatively to the issue of a Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980. A Section 38 Agreement can take some time to complete. Therefore, it is recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority as early as possible.

It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority at an early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance will be required in the particular circumstance, and it is essential that design calculations and detailed construction drawings for the proposed works are submitted to and approved by the County Council (or District Council) in writing before any work commences on site.

In order to carry out the off-site works required you will be undertaking work in the public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and therefore land over which you have no control. In order to undertake the works you will need to enter into an agreement under Section 278 of the Act.All correspondence with the Highway Authority should be addressed to: TBH - NCC (Highways Development Control) (Floor 8), Nottinghamshire County Council, County Hall, Loughborough Road, West Bridgford, Nottingham, NG2 7QP.

The Environment Agency advises that condition 8 should not be altered without its prior notification to ensure that the above requirements can be incorporated into an acceptable drainage scheme that reduces the risk of flooding.

The Environment Agency does not consider oversized pipes or box culverts as sustainable drainage. Should infiltration not be feasible at the site, alternative above ground sustainable drainage should be used.

The Environment Agency advises that surface water run-off should be controlled as near to its source as possible through a sustainable drainage approach to surface water management. Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) are an approach to managing surface water run-off which seeks to mimic natural drainage systems and retain water on-site, as opposed to traditional drainage approaches which involve piping water off-site as quickly as possible.

The Environment Agency advises that SuDS involve a range of techniques, including methods appropriate to impermeable sites that hold water in storage areas e.g. ponds, basins, green roofs etc rather than just the use of infiltration techniques. Support for the SuDS approach is set out in NPPF.

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762 6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com.

The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework, based on seeking solutions to problems

arising in relation to dealing with the planning application. This has been achieved by meeting the applicant to discuss issues raised, providing details of issues raised in consultation responses; requesting clarification, additional information or drawings in response to issues raised; and providing updates on the application's progress.

The County Council Rights of Way require that the availability of the Bestwood St Albans Parish Footpath No.3, which runs alongside the northern boundary of the site, is not affected or obstructed in any way by the proposed development at this location, unless subject to appropriate diversion or closure orders. The County Council should be consulted on any re-surfacing or gating issues and the developers should be aware of potential path users in the area, who should not be impeded or endangered in any way.

# 275 APPLICATION NO. 2014/0950- LAND FRONTING WIGHAY ROAD, LINBY.

Erect 38 No Dwellings and Associated Works.

Councillor Payne proposed a motion to briefly adjourn the meeting to allow Members to consider the minutes of the recent technical briefing, which had been circulated by email earlier in the week. The motion was duly seconded and following a vote, the meeting adjourned.

Following a brief adjournment, the meeting resumed.

Councillor Hope left the meeting.

Ms. Denise Ireland, on behalf of Linby Parish Council, spoke against the application.

Mr. Ian Corner, on behalf of Strata Homes, spoke in favour of the application.

The Service Manager, Planning and Economic Development, provided an update to Members on correspondence received in relation to the application since the publication of the agenda, clarified comments received from a number of statutory consultees and providing policy information.

RESOLVED to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement with the Borough Council as local planning authority and with the County Council as education authority for financial contributions towards, Educational Facilities, Healthcare Facilities, Affordable Housing and Open Space; and subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

- 1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the following approved plans: Standard External Details (SD7-06 Rev A, SD8-01, SD9-12), received on 11th August 2014; Existing and Proposed Levels (Hu/Wh/01/007), received on 21st November 2014; Single and Double Garage plans and elevations (Pa/WY/SG1, Pa/WY/SG2, Pa/WY/DG3), received on 12th December 2014; Materials Layout (29158-04-01-01 Rev A), received on 6th January 2015; Site Layout (29158-02-01 Rev E); Siena, Naples, Florence, Barcelona and Madrid house types (Drawing Nos: 09, 11, 12, 15 and 16), received on 8th January 2015; and new footway to Wighay Road (29158-04-02-01), received on 6th February 2015.
- 3. The remediation scheme hereby permitted (to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to critical receptors) shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and timetable of works. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling(s), a Verification Report (that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out) must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council.
- 4. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Borough Council and development must be halted immediately on that part of the site until such time that the Borough Council has given written approval for works to recommence on site. Once contamination has been reported to the Borough Council, an assessment of contamination must be undertaken. This assessment shall include a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination and an assessment of the potential risks to human health, property, adjoining land, controlled waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments. The assessment shall be undertaken by a competent person and shall assess any contamination of the site whether or not it originates on site. Where remediation is necessary, a written remediation scheme, together with a timetable for its implementation and verification reporting, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council. The remediation scheme shall be implemented as approved.
- 5. During both the initial earthworks and then during construction, dust levels shall be mitigated in accordance with the measures proposed in the submitted 'Control of Dust and Noise during Construction' document, deposited on 11th August 2014.

- 6. No trees shall be felled during the bat active season (which runs from 1st April to 31st October inclusive in any given year), unless a single precautionary emergence survey has been undertaken immediately prior to felling work commencing. In the event of bats being found to be present, development must be halted immediately on that part of the site until such time as the outcome of the survey and details of any proposed mitigation measures have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council. Any mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the tree(s) in question is/are felled.
- 7. No vegetation clearance or ground works shall be undertaken until the site has been walked by an ecologist, and any refugia which could be used by reptiles have been subject to hand searches. If any reptiles are found to be present, they will be moved to a safe location outside the footprint of the development and the refugia will be removed or dismantled. Details of any further mitigation measures that may be deemed necessary shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council before vegetation clearance or ground works commence. The mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before development commences.
- 8. No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place on site during the bird nesting season (1st March to 31st August inclusive in any given year), unless pre-commencement checks for nesting birds have been undertaken by an appropriately qualified ecologist and the outcome reported to the Borough Council. If any nesting birds are found to be present, details of any proposed mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council before the development commences. The mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before development commences, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 9. No building materials, plant or machinery shall be stored during the construction period within a distance of 10 metres from the eastern boundary of the application site to the retained Local Wildlife Site, unless specifically required for the construction of that part of the development or unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 10. Before development is commenced, including vegetation clearance or ground works, the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained shall be protected in accordance with the details specified in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, August 2014 by Thomson Ecology. The means of protection shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details for the

duration of the construction period, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

- 11. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council drainage plans for the proposed means of disposal of surface water and foul sewage. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is first brought into use and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 12. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of measures to prevent the unregulated discharge of surface water from the access driveways, parking and turning areas. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until the access driveways, parking and turning areas have been constructed in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the development.
- 13. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of the methods to used in the construction of the private drives serving plots 1 to 8 in order to ensure the protection of the existing trees which are to be retained. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 14. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a scheme for the incorporation of integrated bird and bat boxes on trees or within the fabric of a proportion of the houses; bird boxes should target species such as house sparrow and swallow. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is first brought into use and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 15. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved by the Borough Council a landscape plan of the site showing the position, type and planting size of all trees, hedges, shrubs or seeded areas proposed to be planted, and including where appropriate details of existing trees to be felled and retained. The landscape plan shall include native species of local provenance and details of the re-instatement and seeding of the areas affected by the banking works on the eastern side of the access road and how this area is to be managed. The approved landscape plan shall be carried out in the first planting season following the substantial completion of the development. If within a period of five years beginning with the date of the

planting of any tree, hedge, shrub or seeded area, that tree, shrub, hedge or seeded area, or any tree, hedge, shrub or seeded area that is planted in replacement of it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes in the opinion of the Borough Council seriously damaged or defective, another tree, shrub or seeded area of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

- 16. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of an archaeological scheme of treatment. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 17. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a Local Employment Agreement to cover the construction of the development hereby permitted. The Local Employment Agreement shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 18. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until the new priority junction, two dropped kerb access points and the footway have been provided at the boundary of the site and along the northern side of Wighay Road. The junction, two dropped kerb access points and footway shall be retained as approved for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 19. Before any of the dwellings which they serve are first occupied, all driveways, parking and turning areas shall be surfaced in a hard bound material behind the highway boundary. The surfaced driveways, parking and turning areas shall then be maintained in such hard bound material for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 20. Any garage doors shall be set back from the highway boundary a minimum distance of 5 metres for sliding or roller shutter doors, 5.5 metres for up and over doors or 6 metres for doors opening outwards. The garage doors shall be retained to this specification for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.
- 21. Any proposed soakaway shall be located at least 5 metres to the rear of the highway boundary and shall be retained to this specification for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

22. The means of enclosure and surfacing hereby permitted shall be provided in accordance with the approved details before the dwellings they serve are first occupied and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

- 1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2. For the avoidance of doubt.
- 3. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 4. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 5. To protect the residential amenity of the area in accordance with the aims of Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 6. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).
- 7. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).
- 8. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 9. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).

- 10. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity and the landscape in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 11. To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and to reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating a flooding problem and to minimise the risk of pollution, in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 12. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 13. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity and the landscape in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 14. To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 15. To ensure that the landscaping of the proposed development accords with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 16. To ensure the appropriate investigation and recording of archaeological features, in accordance Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 11 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).
- 17. To seek to ensure that the construction of the site employs wherever possible local people and assists economic growth in the area.
- In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 19. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 20. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

- 21. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- 22. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

### **Reasons for Decision**

The development has been considered in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014), where appropriate. In the opinion of the Borough Council, the proposed development largely accords with the relevant policies of these frameworks and plans. Where the development conflicts with the Development Plan, it is the opinion of the Borough Council that other material considerations indicate that permission should be granted. The benefits of granting the proposal outweigh any adverse impact of departing from the Development Plan.

### **Notes to Applicant**

The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if any highway forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highways Authority, the new roads and any highway drainage would be required to comply with the Nottinghamshire County Council's current highway design guidance and specification for roadworks, the 6C's Design Guide.

The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under section 219 of the Act payment would be required from the owner of the land fronting a private street on which a new building is to be erected. The developer should contact the Highway Authority with regard to compliance with the Code, or alternatively to the issue of a Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980. A Section 38 Agreement can take some time to complete, so it is recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority as early as possible.

In order to carry out the off-site works required you will be undertaking work in the public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and therefore land over which you have no control. In order to undertake the works you will need to enter into an agreement under Section 278 of the Act. Please contact the Highway Authority for details. In the interests of safety, operational needs and integrity of the Robin Hood Line railway, Network Rail advises that no part of the development should cause any existing level crossing road signs or traffic signals, or the crossing itself, to be obscured. Clear sighting of the crossing must be maintained for the construction/operational period and as a permanent arrangement. The same conditions apply to the rail approaches to the level crossing. This stipulation also includes the parking of vehicles, caravans, equipment, and materials, which again must not cause rail and road approach sight lines of the crossing to be obstructed.

The Borough Council requests that the applicant considers incorporating provision for residential dwellings (with dedicated parking) to have dedicated outside electric power points, to allow residents to charge electric/hybrid vehicles into the future (see IET Code of Practice for EV Charging Equipment Installation).

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762 6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com.

The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework, based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning application. This has been achieved by meeting the applicant to discuss consultation responses; providing details of issues raised in consultation responses; requesting clarification, additional information or drawings in response to issues raised; and providing updates on the application's progress.

# 276 APPLICATION NO. 2014/1282- LINBY HOUSE, LINBY LANE, LINBY.

Application withdrawn prior to the meeting.

### 277 APPLICATION NO. 2014/1360- 294 SPRING LANE, LAMBLEY

Councillor Boot left the meeting.

Change of use at Aspect Court from B1 office unit to D2 Personal Training Studio.

Mr. James Woodford, the applicant, spoke in favour of the application.

The Service Manager, Planning and Economic Development, outlined a proposed additional condition, in the following terms:

"The operator of the use hereby approved shall keep a written record of all clients visiting the site (in relation to date and time of visits) for the lifetime of the development. The records shall be made available to the Borough Council when requested in writing by the Borough Council."

# **RESOLVED** to **GRANT PLANNING PERMISISON** subject to the following conditions:

## Conditions

- 1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. The proposal shall be undertaken in accordance with the details as set out within the application forms received on the 2nd December 2014, the plans received on the 2nd December 2014, the letter from the applicant dated the 1st December 2014 and the e-mail received on the 2nd February 2015 which clarifies in precise details the number of clients expected to attend the premises within the morning and afternoon/evening periods.
- 3. The maximum number of clients visiting the site in the morning period shall not exceed twelve and the number of clients visiting the site in the afternoon/evening period shall not exceed twelve, this excludes the staffing levels at the site at any one time.
- 4. The operator of the use hereby approved shall keep a written record of all clients visiting the site (in relation to date and time of visits) for the lifetime of the development. The records shall be made available to the Borough Council when requested in writing by the Borough Council.

- 1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2. For the avoidance of doubt.
- 3. To protect the amenity of neighbouring properties and the area in general in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Saved Policies 2014).
- 4. To protect the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with ENV1 and to assist with the monitoring of condition 3.

### **Reasons for Decision**

The proposal is appropriate development within the Green Belt, results in no undue impact on the open character of the Green Belt or neighbouring properties and the proposal is acceptable from a highway safety viewpoint. The proposal therefore accords with policies contained within the Aligned Core Strategy, the National Planning Policy Framework and policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

### Notes to Applicant

Planning Statement - The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraphs 186 to 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

### 278 APPLICATION NO. 2015/0028- GEDLING COUNTRY PARK, SPRING LANE, GEDLING

The Chair declared a non-pecuniary interest, on behalf of all Members, as the applicant is Gedling Borough Council.

Erection of two pit tubs on either side of the entrance to Gedling Country Park at Spring Lane.

RESOLVED to delegate authority to the Corporate Director to GRANT CONDITIONAL PLANNING PERMISSION subject to no representations being received that raise material planning considerations.

### Conditions

- 1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the details as set out within the application forms received on the 8th January 2015, the plans received on the 8th January 2015 and the revised plan received on the 27th January 2015.

### Reasons

- 1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2. For the avoidance of doubt.

### **Reasons for Decision**

The proposed development is visually acceptable and results in no significant impact on nearby properties or the area in general. The proposed development is also acceptable from a highway safety viewpoint. The development therefore accords with the Aligned Core Strategy and the Gedling Borough Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

### Notes to Applicant

The attached permission is for development which will involve building up to, or close to, the boundary of the site. Your attention is drawn to the fact that if you should need access to neighbouring land in another ownership in order to facilitate the construction of the building and its future maintenance you are advised to obtain permission from the owner of the land for such access before beginning your development.

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762 6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com.

Planning Statement - The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraphs 186 to 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

### 279 APPLICATION NO. 2015/0030- GEDLING COUNTRY PARK, SPRING LANE, GEDLING

The Chair declared a non-pecuniary interest, on behalf of all Members, as the applicant is Gedling Borough Council.

Site information boards x No 7.

### **RESOLVED to GRANT CONDITIONAL ADVERTISEMENT CONSENT:**

### Conditions

1. The advertisements hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the details as set out within the application forms received on the 8th January 2015, the plans received on the 8th January 2015 and the revised plan received on the 27th January 2015.

- 1. For the avoidance of doubt.
- 280 PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL ACTION SHEET RESOLVED:

To note the information.

281 FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS RESOLVED:

To note the information.

## 282 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.

None.

The meeting finished at 7.50 pm

Signed by Chair: Date: